ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
January 28, 2016
10: 00 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Loui se Stutes, Chair
Represent ati ve Neal Foster

Representati ve Bob Herron

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns
Representative Dan Otiz

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Craig Johnson
Representative Charisse MIlett

COW TTEE CALENDAR
PRESENTATI ON: YOUNG FI SHERVEN S SUWM T
- HEARD

PRESENTATI ON: SOQUTHEAST ALASKA REG ONAL GUI DES ORGANI ZATI ON ON
REG ONAL QUOTA ENTI Tl ES/ CATCH PROPOSAL

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

PAULA CULLENBERG, Director

Al aska Sea Grant Program

School of Fisheries and Ccean Sci ences

University of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the presentation of the
Young Fishernen's Summ t.

TORI CONNCR, Fi sherman

Pet ersburg, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the presentation of the
Young Fi shermen's Summ t.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -1- January 28, 2016



AMANDA JOHNSTON, Fi sher man

Kenai, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during
Young Fi shernmen's Summ t.

GREGG MARXM LLER, Fi sherman

DI Iingham Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during
Young Fi shermen's Summt.

HANNAH HEI MBUCH, Fi sher man

Hormer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during
Young Fishernen's Summ t.

ELSA SEBASTI AN, Fi sher man

Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during
Young Fishernen's Summ t.

ZACHARY HI LL, Seiner

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during
Young Fi shernmen's Summ t.

GARY CLI NE, Regional Fisheries Director
Bristol Bay Econom c Corporation

Di|'l1'i ngham Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during
Young Fishernen's Summ t.

STEVE JOHNSON, Fi sherman

W angel |, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during
Young Fi shermen's Summ t.

ALEXANDER SM TH, Fi sherman

Al eknagi k, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during
Young Fi shernmen's Summ t.

SUNNY RI CE

(No address provi ded)

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during
Young Fi shermen's Summt.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2-

t he

t he

t he

t he

t he

t he

t he

t he

t he

present ati

present at i

present at i

present ati

present at i

present ati

present at i

present ati

present at i

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

t he

t he

t he

t he

t he

t he

t he

t he

t he

January 28, 2016



Bl LL THOMAS, Fi shernman

Hai nes, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the presentation of the
Young Fishernen's Summ t.

TOM OHAUS, Lodge Owner

Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the presentation of the
Sout heast Al aska Regional Guides Organization on Regional Quota
Entities/Catch Proposal.

Rl CHARD YAMADA, Presi dent

Al aska Charter Association (ACA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the presentation of the
Sout heast Al aska Regional Guides Organization on Regional Quota
Entities/Catch Proposal.

ANDY MEZI RON Menber

North Pacific Fisheries Managenent Council (NPFMO)

Sewar d, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the presentation of the
Sout heast Al aska Regi onal Guides Organization on Regional Quota
Entities/Catch Proposal.

RYAN MAKI NSTER, Executive Director

Sout heast Al aska Gui des Organi zati on ( SEAGD

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the presentation of the
Sout heast Al aska Regional Guides Organization on Regional Quota
Entities/Catch Proposal.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

10: 00: 25 AM

CHAIR LOUI SE STUTES called the House Special Comittee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 10:00 a.m Represent ati ves
Stutes, Otiz, Kreiss-Tonkins, Foster, and Herron, were present
at the call to order.

PRESENTATI ON: ~ YOUNG FI SHERVEN S SUWM T

10: 00: 55 AM

CHAI R STUTES announced that the first order of business woul d be
a presentation of the Young Fishernen's Summ t.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- January 28, 2016



10: 01: 38 AM

PAULA CULLENBERG, Director, Al aska Sea Gant Program School of
Fisheries and GCcean Sciences, University of Alaska Fairbanks
(UAF), said there are 33 sea grant prograns throughout the
United States, each representing a partnership between the
Nati onal Cceanic and Atnospheric Adm nistration (NOAA) and the
uni versities. The mssion is to strengthen coastal comrunities
and marine resources throughout the state. Fifteen marine
advisory agents are positioned in eight coastal comunities to
assist in the effort. Ms. Cul |l enberg said she co-chairs the UA
Fi sheries, Seafood & Maritinme Initiative (FSM), which devel oped
a plan to support the fishing industry workforce. The
Department of Labor & W rkforce Devel opnent (DLWD) has adopted
the plan, along with the UA Board of Regents, and a nunber of
muni ci pal groups around the state. It has becone a guiding
docunment for supporting Alaska's huge maritime workforce
representing approximtely 70,000 related jobs, which include:
fisherman, processors, the ferry system freight forwarders,
fisheries biologists, researchers, shellfish farmers, and other
positions penetrating urban and rural | ocales. The workforce
plan has led to the formation of a new group, Maritinme Wrks,
which is an industry group focused on workforce devel opnment.
She reported that the nunber of prograns relating to the marine
econony have been increased on all three nmmjor canpuses. The
expansions include: the Kodiak Marine Seafood Science Center,
devel opment of a commercial fishing training program at the
Bristol Bay canpus, maritine training for the ferry system in
Ket chi kan, and Sitka now has one and two year programs to train
hat chery workers. She said the Young Fisherman's Summt has
convened for Si X consecutive years, with an aggregate
participation of approximtely 300. The summt provides a three
day forum to develop professional |eadership skills, and was
begun in response to the graying of the fleet. The average age
of an Al askan fisherman is estimated to be 49 years ol d.

10: 06: 17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWINS asked for clarity regarding the
average age trend and over what peri od.

M5. CULLENBERG responded that ten years ago, the average age
m ght have been 40, and the rate of increase is considered
significant when conbined with the decline of permt holders who
are under 40. The indications are that the ability for young
people to enter the industry is a concern. Many barriers exist

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- January 28, 2016



for young fisherman who must purchase pernmits and quota shares
to gain access to the profession. Ms. Cullenberg said summt
participants will provide testinony to that end. The summt is
hosting statew de participants wi th backgrounds that represent a
di versity of fishing nethods.

10:11: 07 AM

TORI CONNOR, Fisherman, outlined the permts and quotas she
hol ds, which include: a Prince WIlliam Sound (PW5) permt,

Sout heast hand-troll, and 500 pounds of declassified individua
fishing quota (IFQ. She expressed concern regarding a one
percent |anding tax proposed for the comrercial fleet and opi ned
that it should also include the charter fleet. |In response to a

menber's question, she suggested taxing the sport fisherman as
wel | .

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS confirmed that an equitability
ar gunent may exi st: conmer ci al fisheries pay for
enhancenent/hatcheries wthout simlar contributions from the
charter catch

10: 13: 50 AM

AMANDA JOHNSTON, Fisherman, provided a brief background of her
experiences, including overseas travels, and said Alaska's
coormercial fleet is extrenmely unique and worth preserving.
Accessibility by rural communities and the younger generation to
the fisheries is a concern. As the next generation attenpts to
take over the fishing culture, there is a fear that it is being
lost and may die off. She urged conmttee nenbers to becone
famliar firsthand with the issues by visiting boats and fishing

canps.
10: 15: 33 AM

GREGG MARXM LLER, Fisherman, said he is a fisherman of 25 years
and expressed concerns for helping young people enter the
profession and the difficulties associated wth the fluctuation
in fish prices. Not only do prices vary dramatically, but
l[imtations are inposed regarding the volune that may be sold

which restricts a fisherman's ability to make up for |ow costs
by selling nore fish. The fishing industry is wought wth
instability and limtations, which are a deterrent for anyone
considering entering the business. He pointed out that options
need to be considered for making fishing a nore attractive
career choice. Al so, scenarios, such as the foreign ownership

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -5- January 28, 2016



of the primary Bristol Bay processors could be an area for
scrutiny and change.

10: 18: 04 AM

HANNAH  HEI MBUCH, Fi sherman, stated that she is a third
generation, comercial salnmon and halibut fishernan. She
par aphrased from a prepared statenent, which read:

| wanted to talk to you today about options for
improving comunity access to local fisheries, and
what the outmigration of permts and quota really
neans to coastal Al aska; because, when we talk about
fish and the fishing livelihood we're never really
just talking about fish. We're talking about the
wel | being of our coastal comunities, our ability to
be self-sustaining, [enjoy] food security both locally
and across the state, economc stability, and work
skills. W're also talking about cultural heritage
and famly traditions. These are essential conponents
of community and state health and stability that
strong local fisheries can support. They are also
incredibly difficult to rebuild once they are | ost.

As you |ook at options to sustain and inprove
comunity access to fisheries, | would urge you to
consider it in light of how essential these fisheries
are to a conmmunity's wel | -being.

| believe you will have the opportunity to consider
very nmeani ngful options for inproving community access
to fisheries, including permt banks.

Wiile this nove nay be conplex and challenging, we
cannot wait another generation to change the status
guo. W have to prioritize the health and stability
of Al aska's coastal conmunities by protecting access
to fisheries.

More than ever, Alaska needs the stability of these
smal | busi nesses to sustain our state.

10: 19: 40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked about shareable insights/highlights
from the summt regarding solutions to the out-mgration of
permts.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 6- January 28, 2016



M5. HEI MBUCH answered that several options are being discussed,
including permt banks and educational permts.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noted that the out-mgration of permts is
can be a question of economcs. He said there may be a
conundrum that exists in holding a permt locally, and still
being able to optim ze econom c gains.

V5. HEI MBUCH agr eed. She said it's due to this conundrum that
entering the fishing industry represents such a high cost to the
new generation of fishernen. It's not an inpossible situation
to overcone; however, a structural change in the transfer of
permt ownership may need to be made.

10: 21: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKINS pointed out that the |egislature
created an investnent program [ Depart nent of Commer ce,
Communi ty, and Econom c Devel opnent, Division of Economc

Devel opnent, Financing Section] as an alternate |ending resource
for fishermen, particularly those entering the field. He asked
whet her Ms. Heinbuch had found the [Financial Section] |oans
personal |y hel pful.

MS. HEI MBUCH answered yes. She said it is the only reason she
holds a permt. Still, she stressed, not everyone has the
opportunity to access the |oans; especially rural Al askans who
may not have the financial skills, or credit history, to take
advant age of the state program

10: 22: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ORTIZ asked whether state |loan reforns, or
qualification adjustnents, are being discussed at the summt; is
there a need to consider how the program operates.

M5. HEIMBUCH responded that she is not aware of any such
di scussion. It shouldn't necessarily be easy to receive a |oan

she said, but ways and neans for educating the audience
regardi ng the process woul d be hel pful.

10: 23: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS offered that the |oan program has
been very successful since its inception, and suggested that
addi tional options could provide hel pful augnmentati on.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -7- January 28, 2016



10: 24: 00 AM

ELSA SEBASTI AN, Fisherman, reported that, as a former resident
from the historical fishing village of Point Baker, Prince of
Wal es | sl and, she has wtnessed nmany potenti al young,
generational fishernen turn away from the industry citing the
lack of economc opportunity, financial burdens, and the
i nherent risks involved. She opined that when fishing permts
are gone froma local area, it not only effects the econony, but
entire famlies and an inportant way of l|life are lost as well.
“I would like to encourage the conmttee to inprove access and
opportunities for Alaskan's to Al askan fisheries,"” she said.

10: 25: 53 AM

ZACHARY HILL, Seiner, recounted his decision to buy into the
Kodi ak region fishery and the issues he encountered receiving a
| oan. He was eventually able to outfit hinself via a |oan
through the Alaska Comrercial Fishing and Agriculture Bank
( CFAB) . He expressed gratitude to the conmttee for its tinely
action of increasing lending limt allowances, effectively
expandi ng the opportunities for permt purchases through CFAB.

10: 27: 26 AM

GARY CLINE, Regional Fisheries Director, Bristol Bay Econonc
Corporation, said many of the Bristol Bay area villages have
econonies that rely entirely on the fishing industry and access
to fishing permts is essential. A permt grant program has
been inplenmented to assist the residents, but it is a slow
process. The village of Togiak wunited wth Copper River
Seafoods [Inc.], and created a small processor, and participants
receive premum prices for the products with good success. He
reported nonitoring the Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane (ADF&G
nmeetings to gain an understanding of the fisheries nanagenent
practices in the area. Due to the state budget situation, care
for optimzation of sustainable harvest will be nore inportant,
he stressed.

10: 32:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked about the loss of permits in the
region and the residual resentnent that exists.

MR. CLINE said nmany famly nmenbers will not broach the topic.
He recently learned that his nother sold her permt when he was

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 8- January 28, 2016



an infant, which would be a benefit for him now. As a young
adult, he was urged to go to college and not becone a fishernman;
it was a tinme when drift permts were being sold for $15,000.
Today the same permt may cost $180,000, as the fishery has once
agai n becone a lucrative venture.

10: 34: 41 AM

STEVE JOHNSON, Fisherman, said that as a 15 year fisherman he
would like to offer solutions to a couple of problens. Being a
tender operator, he related that he wuld like to receive
financing through the state to expand his operation, but [|ending
options are not available to him He suggested expanding the
state program to allow owners to use equity from a vessel as
collateral for expansion/inprovenent |oans. Additionally, young
fishermen continually report an inability to afford permt

costs. Interim use permts were once issued to new fishernen
who could not purchase a full permt and he suggested revisiting
that practice. The opportunity would be valuable for a young

fisherman if it could serve as experience equity towards a full
permt | oan.

10: 36: 54 AM

ALEXANDER SM TH, Fisherman, said the [Departnent of Commerce,
Community, and Economic Devel opnent, Division of Economc
Devel opnent, Financing Section] has been helpful to him as a
Bristol Bay fisherman; however, the loan limtations of the

program are a concern.

10: 37: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKI NS noted that 21 limted permts are
owned by residents of the Aleknagik community, down from a
historic high of 72, and the Point Baker permts, nentioned by a
previous testifier, have declined from 89 to 18. He asked about
the socio-econonmc inmpacts on Aleknagik or other changes
observed since the permt declines.

MR SMTH answered that tourism provides a seasonal economc
boost to the area due to the proximty of Al eknagik to [Wod-
Ti kchik State Park], but fishing is the lifeblood. The |ack of
permts cause only negative inpacts and keeps the village
econonmi cal ly suppressed. It's a big, difficult step to acquire
a permt and a boat, he stressed.

10: 39: 36 AM

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -9- January 28, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said a nenber of his famly, Raynond
Conquest, resides in Al eknagik, and asked M. Smth to draw a
conparison of the inportance of commercial fishing between the
two famlies.

MR SMTH admtted to feeling lucky to be involved in the
fishing industry that sustains his famly today as it did his
ancestors. The village environment is closed and requires
cooperation around the shared fishing interest, he offered.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON inquired whether the comunity has been
i npacted by the [Wod River Bridge, conpleted in 2015].

MR. SM TH responded that there is excitenent, even anong those
who were not initially supportive of the project. Havi ng
anbul ance service has been a lifesaver, and the access it
provides to the park, despite environnmental concerns, provides a
possibility for econom c grow h.

10:42: 09 AM

SUNNY RICE expressed appreciation for the conmittee' s interest
in hearing fromthe sunmt attendees.

10: 42: 35 AM

CHAI R STUTES expressed gratitude and personal delight at the
| evel of participation being generated through the sunmt.
After forty years, her husband has recently retired from the
i ndustry and, she said, it is heartwarmng to see the response
from the young fishernen bringing enthusiasmand new life to the
fleet.

10: 43: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ORTlI Z noted the seriousness of the decline in
resi dent owned permts. He said in the district he represents
Hydaburg, the 62 permts owned in 1980 have dwindled to 38, with
only one active seine permt being fished. It is incunbent upon
the legislature to be active in seeking ways and neans to
reverse this trend.

10: 44: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON requested comments from a forner
| egislative menber in the gallery, Representative Bill Thonas.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 10- January 28, 2016



10:45:15 AM

BILL THOVAS, Fisherman, said he has fished continuously since
1969. Two permts were originally in Haines, and one has been
sold, making him the last permt holder in the area; it was
gifted to him from the state. He has endeavored to have the
regi onal corporations, village corporations, tribal governments,
and Al aska Regi onal Devel opnent Organizations (ARDORs) be the
permt owners. Thus, fishernen could |ease the permts and have
easier accessibility to the industry. The Al askan definition of
a successful fisherman is one who Ilives in Seattle or
Bel I i ngham Washi ngton, he joked. The exodus of permts has
been ongoing, and today perhaps 70 percent of the Southeast
seine permts belong to non-residents, as well as 75-80 percent
from Bristol Bay. Many fishernmen end up in trouble due to the
i nherent fluctuating nature of dependable incone, or tax issues.

The reason he still fishes at the age of 69, is due to inproved
fishing nmethods that allow him to continue to successfully
participate, including: radar, hydraulic lift systens, auto
pilots, and higher speed boats. The permits have left the
state, and the individual fish quotas will follow he predicted,
as they are currently priced at $53.00 per pound. He said
taxing the sport harvest would be helpful, as previously

menti oned. The caveat should be that, if you own a permt, you
need to reside in Al aska, he opined.

10: 49: 51 AM

The conmmittee took an at-ease from10:50 a.m to 10:57 a. m

PRESENTATI ON:  SOUTHEAST ALASKA REG ONAL GUI DES ORGANI ZATI ON ON
REG ONAL QUOTA ENTI Tl ES/ CATCH PROPOSAL

10:57:10 AM

CHAI R STUTES announced that the final order of business would be
a presentation by the Southeast Al aska Regional Qui des
Organi zati on on Regional Quota Entities/Catch proposal.

10: 59: 06 AM

TOM OHAUS, Lodge Omer, said the halibut harvest is overseen by
the North Pacific Fishery Managenment Council (NPFMC) as a
federally managed fish; discrimnation for state residency is
not a regulatory factor. The topic for consideration, he
pointed out, is the guided, sport, charter harvest, not the

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -11- January 28, 2016



commercial catch nor the non-guided sport catch. He then
provided a brief history of the last 20 years of the harvest.
The highlights included: 1996/97 the Southeast and Southcentral
catch became a concern; 2008 NPFMC passed the catch sharing plan
allowing a percentage of the exploitable yield to be taken by
guided charter anglers and grouping them with the individual
fishing quota (IFQ [commercial] harvesters; 2008 halibut stocks
were identified to be on a dowward trend, and charter guides
self-determned their share to be wunder allocated; 2008-2010
guided catch Ilimts wunderwent a series of adjustnments and
Sout heast limts changed from the previous two halibut of any
size to only one less than 37 inches |ong; Southeast guides join
together to formulate a workable plan and propose a joint owned

| FQ

11: 03: 22 AM

CHAIR STUTES surmsed that IFQ would be included in a pool
versus an individual's nane, and asked about the nechanics of
t he pl an.

MR. OHAUS responded that the IFQ represents the pounds of fish
al l ocated for harvest. The IFQ would be in the nane of the
recreational quota entity (RQE).

CHAI R STUTES questioned the ability to roll individual quotas
into a pool.

MR. COHAUS stated that the nechanism already exists in other
prograns, and the proposal represents an expansion.

11: 05:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z queried whether the pool would be managed
st at ewi de.

MR. OHAUS responded that every IFQ relates to a specific fishing
region. The intention is to create one board that would govern
two halibut quota pools; one for Southcentral and one for
Sout heast .

11: 06: 30 AM

CHAI R STUTES questioned whether the plan establishes a cap for
the nunber of pounds that could be purchased by the proposed
entity.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -12- January 28, 2016



MR. OHAUS answered yes, and deferred for further details.

11: 07: 42 AM

RI CHARD YAMADA, President, Alaska Charter Association (ACA),
underscored that fish allocation conflicts exist between the
commercial and charter fleet sectors. The statew de Al aska
Charter Association and Southeast Al aska CCuides O ganization
(SEAGD) wunited efforts to wite a joint grant through the
National Fish and WIldlife Foundation (NFW) to create a
mechani sm that allows inter-sector transfer on a market based
approach. He directed attention to the conmittee packet and the
15 page Executive Summary reprint of the 132 page whitepaper,
titled, "Integrating a recreational fishery into a catch share
program Case study of Alaska's guided halibut sport fishery,
CATCH, Catch Accountability Through Conpensated Halibut,"” dated
January 2014, with author credits to Richard Yamada and Sherry
Flurmerfelt. The paper provides the results from two years of
research, he said, which he personally conducted. The nechanism
proposed, a Recreational Quota Entity (RQE), would be devel oped
as a state owned, non-profit organization, conposed of a board,

boat charter operators and other seats to be designated. The
RQE would purchase IFQs from any willing sellers, at market
prices, and hold the quota for the good of all guided
recreational anglers. The expectation is that the RQE would
receive an annual allocation by which the NPFMC would set bag
l[imts, in addition to the regulatory allocation. Based on

t hese conbined allocations, he said, the charter fishermen wll
be relieved of the severe restrictions currently in place.

11:10: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z asked how new partici pants would be able to
benefit fromthe pool once it's ongoing.

MR. YAMADA pointed out that the pool would be restricted to
gui ded charter anglers, and said the IFQ is based on abundance

of stock, which will be distributed anong the active guides as
they access the quota held in trust wthout i ndividual
owner shi p.

11:12: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWINS clarified that charter qguides
currently operate under a limted entry permt, and through
acquisition of a permt a new guide would gain access to the
pool .

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 13- January 28, 2016



MR. YAMADA concurr ed.

11:12: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ORTIZ asked what would be the origin of the
resources to purchase the IFQ for establishing the RQE

MR.  YAMADA responded that a $10.00 halibut stanp is being
proposed, which over tinme would provide the funds to purchase
t he quot as.

11:13:44 AM

CHAI R STUTES asked whether paranmeters and quota nanagenent
guidelines exist to ensure that anglers aren't exceeding limts
I n- season.

MR. YAMADA answered that in-season nmanagenent prograns are not

part of the proposal. Currently, regulators use estimtes based
on angl er nunbers and season effort, along with the size of fish
| anded, to project guidelines for the follow ng season. The

confidence level is plus or mnus 10 percent, and significant
overages, as have occurred in the past, are not antici pated.

CHAI R STUTES queried what would happen if a serious overage did
occur; would it be taken off the next years allocation.

MR. YAMADA said a subsequent year reduction has been proposed,
as well as a rollover, but the council wll nake the policy
deci si on.

11:16: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked about the health of the halibut
resource in Southeast regardl ess of the inpact of the quotas.

MR. YAMADA said the International Pacific Halibut Comm ssion
(IPHC) has reported it to be stabilized fromthe decline of the
| ast few years; perhaps on an upti ck.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON poi nted out that the smaller size catch is
better for eating; however, there continues to be interest in
pursui ng the |argest halibut possible. He asked whether anglers
understand that taking the nonster fish could be harnful to the
resour ce.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -14- January 28, 2016



MR. YAMADA explained that there is a term fisheries induced
evolution, which is based on the assunption that the | argest
fish are fertile females and that there is an effect on the

population if they are fished out. However, it's not
necessarily correct, he opined, nor are large females as fertile
as the vyounger, smaller ones, neasuring 30-32 inches. The
|arger fish will have contributed to the gene pool and be on the

short end of its |life span when taken.

11:21: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ORTIZ added that it's inportant to consider the
significant, hal i but by-catch issue, which is a rmajor
contributing factor to the health of the fishery.

11: 22: 39 AM

ANDY MEZI ROW Menber, North Pacific Managenment Council, referred
to the previously cited white paper to explain how the council
works with these type of conmmunity generated reports. The
council generated docunent is being analyzed and wll be
reviewed prior to submssion to the conmttee. Addressing the
pur pose of need, he paraphrased froma witten statenent, which
read [original punctuation provided]:

Al aska’s guided halibut anglers have seen recent
increases in regulatory restrictions due to declining
hal i but stocks and guided recreational allocations. A
mar ket - based mechani sm for t he gui ded hal i but
recreational sector may be an effective neans to
suppl enment their annual allocations. Al l ow ng an RQE
(Recreational Quota Entity) to hold a limted anount
of comrercial halibut [quotas] on behalf of guided

recreational halibut anglers under a “wlling seller
and wlling buyer” approach may result in less
restrictive annual har vest measures for gui ded
recreational angl ers in times  of l ow hali but

abundance, while conplying with total halibut renovals
under the guided halibut catch limts determ ned by
the International Pacific Halibut Conmm ssion. The
gui ded recreational halibut allocation under the
Hal i but Catch Sharing Plan would be conmbined with the
hal i but quota share held by the RQE to determ ne the
annual |y adjusted total guided halibut allocation.
The total allocation would be the basis for the
determ nation of appropriate nanagenent neasures for
t he guided halibut sector each year. The intent is to

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 15- January 28, 2016



consider such a nmechanism wthout wundermning the
goals of the halibut [IFQ Program or significant
adverse inpacts to other halibut sectors.

11: 30: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked about the internal vetting and peer
revi ew process to which the docunent was subj ect ed.

MR. MEZI ROW expl ai ned:

There is one agency analyst that is assigned to this
proj ect . The agency anal yst builds the docunent, and
then it's reviewed by the person that's responsible
for all of the halibut issues that conme before the
council, ... then once again reviewed after that by
his supervisor, which is the chairman of the North
Paci fic Fishery Managenent Council (NPFMC).

11: 31: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWINS confirmed that the white paper,
bei ng proposed is contingent on council action/deliberation over
t he next year.

11:32: 14 AM

MR, MEZI ROW descri bed the reporting process that is proposed and
conjectured on how the council mght intervene depending on
mar ket prices. He presented a nunber of scenarios to provide an
illustration for fluctuating prices and council control options.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS asked whether the council has
reviewed the community generated docunent CATCH

MR. MEZI ROW answered yes, and said it is informative, however
dated to 2014. The council is taking the core ideals of the
docunent to incorporate into its own report.

11: 35: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z asked to hear further about the health of
t he resource.

MR, MEZI ROW described the steady recovery of the stocks in
Sout heast, and said the Western stocks are nore tenuous.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 16- January 28, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z asked what is attributed to the popul ation
declines in the halibut fishery.

VR. MEZI RONW offered that there have been a variety of
ci rcumnst ances. The harvest rates were set artificially high,
through the directed fishery, for a period of tine ten years
ago. The calculations for the nodel in use, at the tineg,
resulted in generous catch privileges being given to the private
sector. A nmgjor area of concern has been the @lf of Al aska
trawml fleet by-catch, where observer coverage is inportant.
bservers are currently aboard 25 percent of the fleet, up from
13 percent, and the goal is to have 100 percent coverage wth
the expectation to see a significant |owering of by-catch
| evel s.

11: 38: 35 AM

RYAN MAKI NSTER, Executive Director, Southeast Al aska Guides
Organi zati on (SEAQD), said that the whitepaper will be revi ewed,
and si deboards inposed by the council, and then it can cone back
to the legislature for action. He predicted a need for
statutory review and fiscal scrutiny. As previously nentioned
a halibut stanmp could be inplenmented for purchasing |IFQ, and
managenment costs to ADF&G woul d need to be consi dered.

11: 40: 46 AM

CHAIR STUTES thanked the participants and announced the
committee's next meeting.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Special Commttee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 11:40
a. m

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -17- January 28, 2016



